Public Document Pack

Values and Ethics SubCommittee
Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 18 September 2018
Time: 12.00 pm
Venue: Meeting room, City Hall
Distribution:
Councillors: Olly Mead, Anthony Negus, Liz Radford and Clive Stevens

Issued by: Ian Hird, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3176, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 22384
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: 10 September 2018

Values and Ethics Sub-Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome and apologies

2.

Election of Chair

3.

Recommendations to inform first meeting of the subcommittee
(Pages 3 - 13)

Agenda Item 3
Values and Ethics Sub-Committee

18th September 2018

Report of:

Director of Legal & Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Title:

Recommendations to inform the first meeting of the Values & Ethics Sub-Committee

Ward:

Citywide

Officer presenting report: Nancy Rollason, Head of Legal Service

Recommendation
That the committee notes the recommendations in the report:
1. To meet twice a year on a planned basis to consider regular business as set out in the terms of
reference, including an annual review of the Member’s Code of Conduct, the procedure for dealing
with allegations of breach, Member dispensations and officer reports in relation to Member training
on ethical standards.
2. To meet on an ad hoc basis to hear allegations of a breach of the code of conduct referred by the
Monitoring officer.
3. As part of the diarised meetings to receive and review a report setting out summaries of the
complaints received during the preceeding 6 months.
Summary
The Values and Ethics sub-committee was established by the Audit committee on the 26th July 2018
following approval by Full Council on the 17th July of the sub committee’s terms of reference.
This report sets out recommendations for managing the business of the committee as provided by the
Terms of reference.

Page 3

Policy
The Values & Ethics Sub-Committee will take over some of the functions previously undertaken
by the Audit committee and will support the Authority’s duty to promote and sustain high
standards of conduct within the council. It will oversee the process for dealing with complaints
against members under the code of conduct; this may include recommending, to Full Council,
changes to the processes where that is felt to be appropriate.
Consultation
1.

Internal
Deputy Mayor, Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Party Group
Leaders

2.

External
Not applicable.

Context
On the 26th July 2018 the Audit committee established the Values and Ethics Sub-Committee in line
with the Terms of Reference agreed by Full Council on the 17th July 2018 (at Appendix A).
The meeting agreed that membership of the sub-committee for 2018-19, would comprise 4
councillors. The sub-committee would be chaired by 1 of the 2 independent members of the Audit
Committee.
The meeting directed that arrangements be made for an inaugural meeting of the sub-committee.
Subsequent to the meeting, the Independent members agreed that Adebola Adebayo would be
proposed as the Chair of the sub committee
The inaugural meeting of the Sub- Committee is being held on the 18th of September and the business
at that first meeting will include the pattern of meeting and the type of business the sub-committee
will undertake in accordance with its terms of reference.
A key function of the Sub-committee will be to act as the hearing panel to consider the outcome of
investigations of allegations of Breach of the Member Code of Conduct, “where these are referred to
them by the Monitoring Officer, and the imposition of sanctions as appropriate in accordance with the
law, the Council’s Constitution and relevant procedures adopted by the Council”.
The Committee will need to meet on an ad hoc basis to consider such referrals.
The Sub-committee is also responsible for “the adoption, implementation and maintenance of a
procedure for dealing with allegations of breach of the Member Code of Conduct; including
monitoring and review and amending it from time to time as the Committee sees fit”.
The council currently has an adopted code and a process for dealing with complaints and the subcommittee may wish to consider whether and if so at what point it wishes to review the code and
complaints process.

Page 4

The Sub-committee will also advise the Council on the adoption and operation of the Member Code of
Conduct, and make recommendations for change if considered necessary. It is recommended that this
is done on an annual basis.
The Sub- committee terms of reference also include oversight of training for all members in the ethical
standards and the operation of the Member Code of Conduct and ensuring it is well publicised both
within and outside the Council.
Lastly, in order to fulfil its role of oversight of the code and complaints process at BCC It is
recommended that the committee review on a bi-annual basis the complaints received and the
outcomes. The Monitoring Officer will take responsibility for the production of this report on a biannual basis.
It is recommended that the Committee meets twice a year on a planned basis to undertake the work
set out above and on an ad hoc basis to consider any cases referred by the Monitoring officer.

Other Options Considered
3.

None necessary.

Risk Assessment
4.

The need to independently review the risk, governance and control framework environment is
pivotal to the effective operations of the Council’s functions.
Failure to maintain and, where required, improve this environment will not only impact on the
proper practices of the Council, but will also be in breach of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 and may attract an adverse opinion from the External Auditor.

Public Sector Equality Duties
8a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

Page 5

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
8b)

No equality impact anticipated from this report.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal implications:
The establishment of a Values and Ethics Sub-committee assists the Council to comply with
duties under The Localism Act 2011 to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members
and co-opted members of the Authority, including the duty to make arrangements to ensure that
there is a process in place to investigate and make decisions in respect of allegations against members.
Nancy Rollason
Head of Legal Service
Financial:
(a) Revenue
Not applicable.
(b) Capital
Not applicable.
Land/Property
Not applicable.
Human Resources
Not applicable.
Appendices:
Appendix A – Updated terms of reference for the Audit Committee, including terms of reference for
the Values & Ethics Sub-Committee
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

Page 6

“Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police” – CIPFA 2013

Page 7

Appendix A - Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee and
Values & Ethics Sub-Committee
Composition of the Committee
The Audit Committee comprises seven members of the Council and up to two
independent members. The independent members are appointed by the committee.
The Chair and Vice-Chair of the committee shall be confirmed by the Audit
Committee as per committee procedure rules. A minimum of three councillor
members of the Audit Committee will be present for the meeting
to be deemed quorate.
The Committee may not appoint any person as an independent member who is an
active member of any political party, defined as any person who engages in political
activities which would not be permissible if that person was an officer holding a
politically-restricted post within the Council. Independent membership may only be
made if the person has particular knowledge or expertise in the functions for which
the Committee is responsible.
The Committee will meet at least five times a year and will maintain the technical
capability to discharge the Audit Committee responsibilities of the Council. The Chair
of the Committee may convene additional meetings, as deemed necessary.
The Audit Committee may hold separate meetings with External / Internal Auditors
without officer or executive representation. The Committee should hold at last one
such meeting annually with External and Internal Auditors.

Objectives or Purpose
•

To provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management
framework and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the
authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects
governance, the authority’s exposure to risk and weakness of the control
environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

•

To review matters relating to Internal Audit, external audit, risk management,
governance,
assurance
statements,
anti-fraud
and
anti-corruption
arrangements.

•

To enhance and promote the profile, status and authority of the Internal Audit
function and to demonstrate its independence.

•

To contribute towards making the authority, its committees and departments
more responsive to the audit function.

1|Page

Page 8

•

To review compliance with the relevant standards, codes of practice and
corporate governance policies of the Council.

1. Audit Activity
1.1

To approve the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy and monitor its progress.

1.2

To approve the Internal Audit annual plan of work and monitor unscheduled
work that could potentially divert audit resources away from a plan, and
monitor performance against those plans, ensuring that there are no
inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

1.3

To suggest work for Internal and External Audit.

1.4

To consider the Annual Report and opinion of the Head of Internal Audit and a
summary of Internal Audit activity and the level of assurance it can give over
the Council’s corporate governance arrangements prior to approving the
Annual Accounts.

1.5

To oversee and provide assurance to the Council on the provision of an
effective internal audit service and consider the main issues arising from
summary Internal Audit reports, and seek assurance that action has been
taken where necessary, particularly in areas of high risk.

1.6

To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the
Internal Audit function, including the external peer review and reports on the
results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme in order to
gain assurance on the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function.

1.7

To monitor the implementation of agreed actions within reasonable
timescales.

1.8

To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Inspection Letter, relevant reports
and the reports to those charged with governance in the process for the
approval of the Annual Accounts.

1.9

To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor to ensure
agreed action is taken within reasonable timescales.

1.10

To comment on the scope and depth of the external audit work and to ensure
it gives value for money.

1.11

To liaise with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited over the appointment
of the Council’s External Auditor.

1.12

To consider the reports of inspection agencies relevant to the Council.

2|Page

Page 9

1.13

To undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of Internal
Audit.

1.14

To oversee the appointment / dismissal of the Chief Internal Auditor.

2.

Regulatory Framework

2.1

To receive assurance reports on the effectiveness of the Council’s
Constitution in respect of contract procedure rules, financial regulations,
codes of conduct and behaviour.

2.2

To review any issue referred to it by the Head of Paid Service or Executive
Director or any Committee of the Council.

2.3

To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and
corporate governance throughout the Council.

2.4

To monitor Council policies on whistleblowing and anti-fraud and anticorruption policies, including the Council’s complaints process.

2.5

To review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement prior to approval,
considering whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting
assurances, and recommend its adoption for publication with the annual
accounts, together with associated plans for addressing areas of improvement
and advising the Council as appropriate.

2.6

To review the arrangements for corporate governance, including the Code of
Corporate Governance, to agree necessary actions to ensure compliance with
best practice and to recommend to Full Council as appropriate.

2.7

To review the Council’s framework of assurance, for example Assurance
maps, and ensure that it adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the
Council.

2.8

To review the Council’s compliance with its own and published national
standards and controls.

2.9

To review assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of the Council’s
arrangements to secure value for money.

2.10

To review the assessment of fraud risk and potential harm to the Council from
fraud and corruption and to monitor the use of resources to address fraud risk.

2.11

To report as appropriate to Full Council on issues which require their attention
or further action.

3|Page

Page 10

3

Accounts

3.1

To approve the annual Statement of Accounts. Specifically to consider
whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether
there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that
need to be brought to the attention of the Council.

3.2

To consider, in the context of approving the Accounts, the External Auditor’s
report to those charged with the governance issues arising from the audit of
the accounts.

3.3

To review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and policies, and
make recommendations to Full Council for approval.

4.

Risk Management

4.1

To consider the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management arrangements
including reviewing the Risk Management Policy and the Corporate Risk
Register.

4.2

To provide assurance to the Council, in the Committee’s Annual Report, on
the effectiveness of risk management arrangements in place.

4.3

To seek assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues.

4.4

To be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements, including the Annual
Governance Statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions
required to improve it.

5.

Accountability Arrangements

5.1

To report to Full Council on an annual basis on assurances received,
significant control issues, the Committee’s performance in relation to the
terms of reference and the effectiveness of the Committee in meeting its
purpose.

Values and Ethics
The Audit Committee shall appoint a Values and Ethics Sub-Committee
Composition of Values and Ethics Sub-Committee

4 Elected members of the Audit Committee (one from each political group
represented on the committee), and one independent member, chaired by an
independent member.
4|Page

Page 11

Terms of Reference for Value & Ethics Sub-Committee

To deal with all matters relating to the ethical framework affecting members of the
Council under Part 1 Chapter 7 Localism Act 2011 as amended and all other
relevant legislation including regulations, directions and guidance. This shall include,
but not be limited to:1) The promotion of the highest standards of behaviour by members of the
Council, including the Mayor, councillors, independent members and cooptees
2) Advising the Council on the adoption and operation of the Member Code of
Conduct, making recommendations for change as the Committee sees fit.
3) Training all members in the operation of the Member Code of Conduct and
ensuring it is well publicised both within and outside the Council.
4) The adoption, implementation and maintenance of a procedure for dealing
with allegations of breach of the Member Code of Conduct; including
monitoring and review and amending it from time to time as the Committee
sees fit.
5) Dealing with allegations of Breach of the Member Code of Conduct, where
these are referred to them by the Monitoring Officer, and the imposition of
sanctions as appropriate in accordance with the law, the Council’s
Constitution and relevant procedures adopted by the Council.
6) Consideration of applications for dispensation to allow members to participate
in consideration of matters in which they would, but for a dispensation, not be
able to participate, in circumstances permitted by law.
7) To adjudicate on any dispute relating to the payment of Members’ Allowances
or expenses under the Members’ Allowances scheme in force from time to
time.
8) To review the Council’s use of the powers available to it under the Regulation
of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
9) Conferring of Alderman/Alderwoman status and the criteria for such awards
5|Page

Page 12

10) To lead on member development and enhance the role of members as city
leaders and community councillors
11) To review compliance if the Mayor and Councillors in terms of mandatory
training
12) To have oversight of the Register of Members' Interests.
13) All things necessary or in the opinion of the Committee appropriate to fulfil
the role and remit of a Values and Ethics Committee as defined by law or the
Council’s constitution.

6|Page

Page 13

